
 

 

Wabasha Soil and Water Conservation 
District Regular Board Meeting 

April 24, 2025 
8:15 am 

         611 Broadway Ave. Suite 10B 
 

I. CALL MEETING TO ORDER 
 

II. PLEDGE ALLEGIANCE 

III. AGENDA 

IV. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
Comments limited to 5 minutes per speaker 

 
V. CONSENT AGENDA -Board Action 

Items on the Consent Agenda are considered to be routine by the Board and may be 
enacted through one motion. Any item on the Consent Agenda may be removed by any 
of the Board members for separate consideration 

 
i. Contracts 

A. Kenneth Heise Contract# 25-CC-8 in the amount of $1,743.61 for 
Practice 380 Windbreak/Shelterbelt Establishment and Renovation,  
Practice 490 Tree/Shrub Site Preparation. 
(Funding sources – FY24 Conservation Contract $150.99 and  
FY25 Conservation Contracts $1,592.62) 

ii. Contract Amendments 
A.  Contract Amendment# 2 for Contract# WS-08 to change the Land Occupier 
from Dan Baker to Diane Baker. 

iii. Vouchers 
A. Nancy Kuklinski Voucher payment for Contract# 24-SWCDAid-2 in the 

amount of $570.00 for Practice 314 Brush Management. 
(Funding source – SWCD Aid) 

iv. Grants 
v. AgBMB Loan Applications 

A. Jary Holst AgBMP loan application in the amount of $17,000.00 for 
 John Deere 1770, 12-row planter that allows for no-till planting.  This will help 
with erosion and nutrient runoff. 

B. Isaac Holst AgBMP loan application in the amount of $40,000.00 for a Self-
propelled Sprayer to apply side dressing on corn and soybeans. Will limit drift 
since application can be made at the correct time and weather.  Less product 
may be used. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  



 

VI. SECRETARY’S REPORT 
A. March 27, 2025, Meeting Minutes – Board Action 

 

VII. TREASURER’S REPORT – Board Action 
A. March District Financial Statements 

Included for your review 
B. March Program Record 

 
VIII. PAYMENT OF MONTHLY BILLS 

A. Monthly Bills in the amount of $64,185.05 - Board Action 
 

IX. DISTRICT REPORTS 
A. Chair Report – Lynn Zabel 
B. County Commissioner – Bob Walkes 
C. District Manager Report – Terri Peters 
D. NRCS Report – Christina Taylor – (In the Packet) 
E. District Technician Report- Matt Kempinger – (In the Packet) 
F. Natural Resources Technician Report– Katelyn Abts – (In the Packet) 
G. Soil Health/Nutrient Management Tech Report – Deanna Pomije – (In the Packet) 

H. Bookkeeper/Administrative Assistant Report -Sue Cerwinske - 

I. BWSR Report –  

J. Other agencies –  

 
X. OLD BUSINESS 

A. Conservation Project – Lynn (open to any Supervisor for ideas)  
B. Wage Study – Terri Update (Presentation at May meeting) 
C. Federal Funds – Terri Update  
D. Well Inventory – Katelyn Update 
E. Well Mitigation Program – Terri Update 

 
XI. NEW BUSINESS 

A. MASWCD Memo - Call for Resolutions – 2025 Resolution Process - Informational 
i. 2025 Resolutions Process Guidelines. 

B. Select the Conservation Farmer of the Year - Discussion 
C. Select the Woodland Manager of the year - Discussion 
D. Approve Val Adler Contract# 2025WAGZ-WC-02 in the amount of $53,599.50 for 

Practice 410 Grade Stabilization Structure including multiple practices – Board 
Action 
(Funding source -FY24 Greater Zumbro Watershed Based Funding (WAGZ) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

E. Upcoming Events 
i. Tree Pick up Day, Friday April 25, 9:00 am – 3:00 pm. 
ii. 5th Grade Conservation Field Day, May 14, 2025 
iii. May 22, 2025, Regular Board Meeting 
iv. Local Work Group – June 26th, 10:00 am (with our Regular Board Meeting) 

 
XII. Board Reports 

A. Whitewater JPB – Lynn 
B. Zumbro 1W1P – Dag  
C. WinLaC 1W1P – Lynn 
D. SE SWCD Technical Support JPB - Dag 
E. County Board Meeting – Sharleen 

 
 

XIII. Adjourn  
  



















 

 

Wabasha Soil and Water Conservation 
District Regular Board Meeting 

March 27, 2025 
8:15 am 

         611 Broadway Ave. Suite 10B 
 

I. CALL MEETING TO ORDER 
Meeting called to order at 8:15 am by Lynn Zabel, Chair 
Supervisors Present: Lynn Zabel, Chair, Chet Ross, Co-Chair, Sharleen Klennert, 
Treasurer, Seth Tentis, Secretary 
Staff Present: Terri Peters, District Manager 
Others Present: Sheila Harmes, Winona County Water Planner and Whitewater 
Watershed Coordinator, Bob Walkers, County Commissioner, Christina Taylor, NRCS 
and Frank Klennert, citizen. 

 

II. PLEDGE ALLEGIANCE 

III. AGENDA 
Motioned by Klennert and seconded by Ross to approve the Agenda as presented. 
Affirmative: Ross, Klennert, Tentis, Zabel 
Opposed: None 
Motion Carried  

IV. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
Comments limited to 5 minutes per speaker 

 
V. CONSENT AGENDA -Board Action 

Items on the Consent Agenda are considered to be routine by the Board and may be 
enacted through one motion. Any item on the Consent Agenda may be removed by any 
of the Board members for separate consideration 

 
i. Contracts 

A. Allelu Farms Inc. (Nancy Kohrs) Contract# 24-CC-16 in the amount of 
$337.60 for Practice# 380 Windbreak / Shelterbelt Establishment and 
Renovation. 
(Funding source – FY24 Conservation Contracts) 

B. Reiter Living Trust (William Reiter) Contract# 24-CC-15 in the amount of 
$198.54 for Practice# 380 Windbreak/Shelterbelt and Renovation and 
Practice 490 Tree/Shrub Site Preparation. 
(Approval contingent on verifying that William is the  
sole signer for the trust.) 
(Funding source – FY24 Conservation Contracts) 

ii. Contract Amendments 
iii. Vouchers 

A.  
iv. Grants 

 
 
 



 

v. AgBMB Loan Applications 
A. William Miller AgBMP Loan Application in the amount of $34,000.00 for  

purchase of a skid loader to help with the precision of cleaning manure and 
loading the manure in a timely manner. 

  Motioned by Klennert and seconded by Ross to approve the Consent Agenda. 
  Affirmative: Ross, Klennert, Tentis, Zabel 
  Opposed: None 
  Motion Carried 

  
VI. SECRETARY’S REPORT 

A. February 27, 2025, Meeting Minutes – Board Action 
Motioned by Ross and seconded by Tentis to approve the Secretary’s Report as 
written. 
Affirmative: Ross, Klennert, Tentis, Zabel 
Opposed: None 
Motion Carried 

 

VII. TREASURER’S REPORT – Board Action 
A. February District Financial Statements 

Included for your review 
 Motioned by Ross and seconded by Klennert to approve February 27, 2025  
 Financial Statements to the best of our ability. 
 Affirmative: Ross, Klennert, Tentis, Zabel 
 Opposed: None 
 Motion Carried 

B. February Program Record 
Staff hours are not in yet.  Billable rates against programs will increase fund 
balance.  Terri went through the program record with the board. 

 
VIII. PAYMENT OF MONTHLY BILLS 

A. Monthly Bills in the amount of $52,321.91 - Board Action 
Motioned by Klennert and seconded by Tentis to approve Payment of the Monthly Bills 
in the amount of $52,321.91. 
Affirmative: Ross, Klennert, Tentis, Zabel 
Opposed: None 
Motion Carried 

 
IX. DISTRICT REPORTS 

A. Chair Report – Lynn Zabel 
B. County Commissioner – Bob Walkes 

Federal COVID funding was cut off, small amounts that they were counting on. 
Personnel Committee Meeting – Fully Staffed. 
MCIT will be coming to update valuations of the County Buildings for Insurance 
purposes. 
 
 
 
 
 



 

C. District Manager Report – Terri Peters 
Day on the Hill with legislators.  Met with Drazkowski, Altendorf by zoom and 
Jacobs.  Bills supporting what we do.  Bill being carried by legislators to keep 
general funds the same or increase.  Drazkowski is introducing a bill for funding 
that should come from the Clean Water Fund.  He believes that is meant for 
SWCD’s, before anyone else. 
Another legislator is taking bill for tax credit on buffer areas, including SWCD’s, to 
do the certifying all of them. 
Meeting with Consultant on wage study analysis.  Discussed with Shawn, she will 
relay back to consultant. 
AgBMP annual review meeting 
BALMM meeting. 
Managers Meeting - Olmsted, RCPP program with NRCS.  Soil Health RCPP Policy. 
Working with Ella on rain barrels.  Troubleshooting on what is needed. 
Partner NFWF awarded and executed.  Part of the fund can be used to replace 
Jenna. 
DNR Forestry – Federal Grant.  Suppose to follow the bid process, but we could 
include a waiver stating why we didn’t follow the bid process. 
WIC Funds left.  Matt Krueger is contracting with us to do outreach in April.  Grant 
expires in August.  Working through with partners. 

D. NRCS Report – Christina Taylor – Attended meeting, gave her report. 
Helping Goodhue with CSP contracts.  Going out to check fields. 
Area Regional Conservationist is the point of contact for NRCS and SWCDs. 

E. District Technician Report- Matt Kempinger – in the packet 
F. Natural Resources Technician Report– Katelyn Abts - in the packet 
G. Soil Health/Nutrient Management Tech Report – Deanna Pomije –In the packet 

H. Bookkeeper/Administrative Assistant Report -Sue Cerwinske - 

I. BWSR Report –  

J. Other agencies – Sheila Harmes, Winona County Water Planner and Whitewater 
Watershed Coordinator. 

An assistant from Green Corps did a project report showcasing what is going on in 
WinLaC.  Will be on the website and some printed.  Another project she went 
through all the DWISMAs in the WinLaC area and found 13 that were moderate or 
higher, vulnerable.  Wellhead plans, action items for all the plans. 5-page 11x17 for 
all the plans. With this information we can apply for potential funding from MDH 
for clean water funds for DWISMA areas. 
Whitewater last meeting decided to have quarterly meetings. Next meeting 
5/27/25. 

  Working on the reconciliation for the Whitewater Drinking Water grant. 
Winona County executed a sub-agreement with Wabasha SWCD for Well Inventory 
for 2 townships in Winona County.  Letters will go out 4/15.  GIS parcel assessment. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 

X. OLD BUSINESS 
A. Conservation Project – Lynn (open to any Supervisor for ideas)  

Observed fields with wash outs and hills with gulleys. 
What do we do for something like that?   
  

XI. NEW BUSINESS 
A. Approve Jerry Bright Amendment# 1 to Contract# 2025WAGZ-WC-01 to increase 

authorized amount to $14,550.00. – Board Action 
(Funding source – FY24-FY25 Greater Zumbro Watershed Based Funding (WAGZ) 

  Motioned by Klennert and seconded by Ross to approve Jerry Bright Amendment #1  
  to increase the authorized amount to $14,550.00. 
  Affirmative: Ross Klennert, Tentis, Zabel 
  Opposed: None 
  Motion Carried 
 

B. Approve Reiter Living Trust (Willian Reiter) Contract# 2025WinLaC-WAB-008 in the 
amount of $35,412.30 for Practices# 410 Grade Stabilization Structure and 412 
Grassed Waterway.  Install by date 11-30-2025 – Board Action 
(Funding source – FY2023 – FY2024 WinLaC) 

 Approval contingent on verifying that William is the  
sole signer for the trust.) 

  Motioned by Klennert and seconded by Ross to approve Reiter Living Trust (William  
  Reiter) Contract# 2025WinLaC-WAB-008 in the amount of $35,412.30 for 

 Practices# 410 Grade Stabilization Structure and 412 Grassed Waterway. 
Contingent on verifying that William is the sole signer for the Reiter Living Trust. 
Affirmative: Ross, Klennert, Tentis, Zabel 
Opposed: None 
Motion Carried 
 

C. 2025 Soil Health RCPP Policy – Discussion and Board Approval-Action 
Terri went over the policy.  Work plan will be in ELink.  Cost share rates.  Data 
privacy.  The Board will see the project#, description on what is being done. To be 
eligible needs to be an allowable NRCS resource concern.  Review of forms, use 
NRCS forms.  BWSR has created a share folder – one for each practice. Batching 
policy, a batch will be presented at monthly board meeting.  The fund is 
$180,000.00.  Ranking -score funding gets lower. 
Motioned by Klennert and seconded by Ross to approve the 2025 Soil Health RCPP 
Policy, after the policy practices and rates were discussed.  Work to finalize 
practices and rates. 
Affirmative: Ross, Klennert, Tentis, Zabel 
Opposed: None 
Motion Carried 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

D. Approve Warren Craig Beighley Contract# 25-CC-7 in the amount of $215.14 for 
Practice# 315 Herbaceous Weed Treatment. Install by date 8/30/2025 – Board 
Action 
(Funding source – FY25 Conservation Contracts) 

Motioned by Ross and seconded by Tentis to approve Warren Craig Beighley 
Contract# 25-CC-7 in the amount of $215.14 for Practice# 315 Herbaceous Weed 
Treatment. 
Affirmative: Ross, Klennert, Tentis, Zabel 
Opposed: None 
Motion Carried 
 

E. Upcoming Events 
i. Reminder -April 12th, Make Your Own Rain Barrel Day.  9-11 am at Coffee Mill’s 

Ski Chalet. 
ii. April 24, 2025, Regular Board Meeting 

 
XII. Board Reports 

A. Whitewater JPB – Lynn 
B. Zumbro 1W1P – Dag  
C. WinLaC 1W1P – Lynn 

Policy Committee Meeting 5/12 and Technical Advisory Board Committee 4/29 
D. SE SWCD Technical Support JPB - Dag 
E. County Board Meeting – Sharleen 

 
XIII. Adjourn  
 Motioned by Ross and seconded by Tentis to adjourn the meeting 9:30 am 

 Affirmative: Ross, Klennert, Tentis, Zabel 
 Opposed: None 
  Motion Carried 
 
 
 
 
        Respectively Submitted By: 
 
 
        _____________________________ 
        Seth Tentis, Secretary 



Mar 31, 25

ASSETS
Current Assets

Checking/Savings
Money Market- Bank of Alma 184,180.89
Money Market WNB Financial 7,469.48
Peoples State Bank Money Market 333,642.05
Petty Cash 79.59
WNB Financial 21,986.67

Total Checking/Savings 547,358.68

Accounts Receivable
11000 · Accounts Receivable 10,478.86

Total Accounts Receivable 10,478.86

Total Current Assets 557,837.54

Fixed Assets
15000 · Furniture and Equipment

Computer 7,523.00
Laptops for Distrcit Techs (2) 3,149.22
Right of Use Asset - Building 94,217.00
Samsung Tablets 1,548.69
15000 · Furniture and Equipment - Other 147,513.54

Total 15000 · Furniture and Equipment 253,951.45

17000 · Accumulated Depreciation
Accum.  Amortization-Building -34,547.00
17000 · Accumulated Depreciation - Other -117,761.78

Total 17000 · Accumulated Depreciation -152,308.78

Total Fixed Assets 101,642.67

Other Assets
Prepaid Items

Prepaid Rent 920.43
Prepaid Items - Other 831.25

Total Prepaid Items 1,751.68

Total Other Assets 1,751.68

TOTAL ASSETS 661,231.89

LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Liabilities

Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable

20000 · Accounts Payable 9,581.23

Total Accounts Payable 9,581.23

Other Current Liabilities
Compensated Absences Payable 21,653.68
Deferred Revenue

FY23 Capacity 4,746.00
FY23 CWF - WIC 52,981.60
FY23 State Cost Share 2,930.00
FY24 Buffer Law Implementation 5,070.59
FY24 BWSR Soil Health Staffing 167,239.55
FY24 Conservation Contracts 1,782.89
FY24 Dept of Rev SWCD Allocatio 38,950.42
FY25 Buffer Law Implementation 20,000.00
FY25 BWSR Soil Health Delivery 30,000.00
FY25 Conservation Contracts 16,804.67
FY25 Easement Delivery (RIM) 1,650.00
FY25 LWM 12,879.49

1:33 PM Wabasha Soil and Water Conservation District
04/21/25 Balance Sheet
Accrual Basis As of March 31, 2025

Page 1



Mar 31, 25

FY25 WCA 9,027.41

Total Deferred Revenue 364,062.62

Deposit on Tree Sales 21,273.94
25500 · Sales Tax Payable 1,152.42

Total Other Current Liabilities 408,142.66

Total Current Liabilities 417,723.89

Long Term Liabilities
Long Term Liability

Right of Use Asset-Lease Liabil 62,828.00

Total Long Term Liability 62,828.00

Total Long Term Liabilities 62,828.00

Total Liabilities 480,551.89

Equity
Fund Balance- Unrestricted 201,395.71
Investment in Capital Assets 38,814.67
32000 · Owners Equity 89,270.83
Net Income -148,801.21

Total Equity 180,680.00

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 661,231.89

1:33 PM Wabasha Soil and Water Conservation District
04/21/25 Balance Sheet
Accrual Basis As of March 31, 2025

Page 2



Mar 25

Ordinary Income/Expense
Income

Intergovernmental Revenues
State

FY23 CWF - WIC 1,530.24
FY23 SE Landscape - MN DNR 1,022.47
FY24-FY26 DNR Forestry 19,662.50
FY24  Conservation Contracts 1,970.24
FY24 Buffer Law Implementation 4,824.35
FY24 BWSR Soil Health Staffing 14,368.75
FY24 Dept of Rev SWCD Allocatio 10,837.02
FY25 Conservation Contracts 1,385.33
FY25 LWM 6,474.51
FY25 WCA 4,383.44
MAWQCP 12,311.74

Total State 78,770.59

Total Intergovernmental Revenues 78,770.59

Total Income 78,770.59

Gross Profit 78,770.59

Expense
District Operations

Other Services and Charges
Advertising Expense 200.00
Building Rent 1,650.00
Conferences and Conventions 341.18
Education and Information 2,498.92
Employee Education and Training 180.00
Employee Mileage 347.69
Fees and Dues 700.00
Internet Expense 95.04
Postage 286.20
Subs. and Pubs. 107.36
Vehicle Expenses

Chevrolet Silverado Vehicle Exp 13.00
Hyundia Tucson Vehicle Expense 147.67

Total Vehicle Expenses 160.67

Total Other Services and Charges 6,567.06

Personnel Services
Employee Salary Permanent 27,231.48
Employer HSA contributions 625.00
Employer Life and Health

1:34 PM Wabasha Soil and Water Conservation District
04/21/25 Profit & Loss
Cash Basis March 2025

Page 1



Mar 25

66000 · Payroll Expenses 50.00
Employer Life and Health - Other 7,800.40

Total Employer Life and Health 7,850.40

Employer Share FICA 1,633.06
Employer Share Medicare 381.93
Employer Share PERA 2,042.36

Total Personnel Services 39,764.23

Supplies
Field Supplies 11.99
Office Supplies 268.22

Total Supplies 280.21

Total District Operations 46,611.50

Project Expenditures
State

FY23 SE Landscape - MN DNR 1,875.00
FY23 WinLaC

Urban Stormwater
Make Your Own Rain Barrel 415.31

Total Urban Stormwater 415.31

Total FY23 WinLaC 415.31

FY24-FY26 DNR Forestry 28,650.00
FY24 WinLaC WRAPS Proj-MPCA 21.03
MAWQCP Administration 8,219.86

Total State 39,181.20

Total Project Expenditures 39,181.20

Total Expense 85,792.70

Net Ordinary Income -7,022.11

Other Income/Expense
Other Income

Interest Income
Interest Earnings MM's 947.67

Total Interest Income 947.67

Total Other Income 947.67

1:34 PM Wabasha Soil and Water Conservation District
04/21/25 Profit & Loss
Cash Basis March 2025

Page 2



Mar 25

Net Other Income 947.67

Net Income -6,074.44

1:34 PM Wabasha Soil and Water Conservation District
04/21/25 Profit & Loss
Cash Basis March 2025

Page 3





NRCS WABASHA FIELD OFFICE REPORT

4/24/2025
Christina Taylor Soil Conservationist

.

CSP (Conservation Stewardship Program)-No Changes this month
 No new applications for CSP 2025 were submitted
 Currently taking new applications but there isn’t a sign-up deadline yet

EQIP (Environmental Quality Incentive Program)-No changes this month

 24 Active EQIP contracts worth $1,115,714.00 with over $677,000 already paid

 17 Applications are pending status for FY 25

 5 applications are in various stages of completion and approval

 7  of the 2025 applications have been obligated, potentially worth a total of 
$184,000

CPP-EQIP (Regional Conservation Partnership Program- EQIP)

 no applications submitted.

RCPP18 (Regional Conservation Partnership Program)

 No new applications submitted

Most requested technical assistance topic continues to be soil erosion control and 
prevention on HEL fields. We have had more requests for information on crop rotations 
with perennial crops. Producers are trying to find better ways to mitigate soil erosion 
both from wind and from heavy rain events.



Monthly Report – April 2025 
Matt Kempinger 
 

 

Projects  
 

• Prepare contract for 1 multi-practice structural project  

• Plan review for 1 multi-practice structural project 

• Critical area planting and mulching planning for 1 waste storage project 

• Survey for 1 diversion project 

• Soil borings for 1 WASCOB project 

• 1 farm walkover 

• Cost share planning for upcoming 2025 and 2026 projects  

• Design work on several grade stabilization structures 

• Design work on several waterway projects 
 
 
 
 

 
Others 
 

• Equipment Rental Program management and drill deliveries 

• Buffer monitoring and flagging 

• Investigate 1 potential WCA violation 

• Notice and review 2 WCA applications 

• WCA TEP Academy Training  

• Assist 1 operator with MAWQCP application 

• WIC outreach planning 

• Office GIS assistance 

• General project and contract management 

• Answered general resource questions from public and assisted where possible 
 

 



Katelyn Abts – April 2025 Board Report
Programs

Conservation Contracts

 1 Windbreak ready for board approval
 Communication with landowners that are planting windbreaks and tree/shrub 

establishment projects

MN Department of Health Wabasha County Well Inventory

 Sent out 2,710 letters with well inventory form on April 12th
 Received 77 responses by April 21st

Filmore Drinking Water Protection

 One contract amendment ready for board approval

Buffer Law

 2 on site buffer inspection
 Contact with landowners about needed spring check

RIM – Blufflands Program

 Sent 1 application for the WinLaC Blufflands Program to the Board of Water and Soil 
Resources

 1 application for the WinLaC Blufflands Program has the agreement approved and next 
steps are being taken

RIM – Inspections

 Inspection list for 2025 received from Board of Soil and Water Resources
 Sent out letters inspection notice letters
 Found three RIMs that have recently been split or changed ownership without contact 

with Wabasha SWCD

Other

Tree Sale

 124 tree orders taken so far
 640 tree tubes sold
 Trees arrive on April 23rd, bareroot and potted
 Tree pick-up day on April 25th

MDH Free Testing Kits

 Assisted landowners in applying for well test kit



Report to the Wabasha SWCD Board – April 24, 2025         

Deanna Pomije, Soil Health Nutrient Management Specialist

Nutrient Management Work:

 Continue work on Adam Graner’s 2026 manure management plan (1,200 acres) – using 
MPCAs new online planner. 

 Compiled the grant’s quarterly report on our MDA, nutrient management grant 
 Working through revisions on the Comprehensive Nutrient Management Plan (CNMP) 

390 acres for Ted Mehrkens for EQIP, collaborating with Kate Bruss, TSA and reviewer 
Aaron Janz, NRCS Plan to also complete a Manure Management Plan for them as 
required by MPCA & their annual 2026 manure management plan this spring

o Resent the draft CNMP to NRCS for a new full review, 4/16
o Completed the Implementation Requirements sheets for the design of the 

seeding and mulching plans for the disturbed area for the manure pit construction 
– Matt to sign off on these designs.

o Reorganizing the plan according to a new CNMP template (3/25) for final 
approval review now with Aaron J. – 2nd NRCS review, previous nutrient 
management specialist retired

Soil Health Work:

 Cover crop biomass sampling:
o Sampled 3 cover crop fields (2 producers, 2 more fields to go)
o Followed sampling protocol from U of MN Extension, including photos, 

measurements and vegetation cuttings
o Delivered samples to Rochester for the lab pick-up

 Lysimeter Water Testing – got up to speed on sampling protocol, sampled with Ella, 
zoom meeting with study collaborator, Bahareh from River Falls, plan to gather farmland 
operation data from 2 landowners & looking into added sample locations in the WIC area

 No-till Drill rental season has begun, Matt and I are collaborating on this service.  Matt 
delivering the drill.  Seth provided a review on the drill’s use & maintenance.  Prepped 
the process and paperwork for rental.  Aiding client’s in working through the rental 
process.

 Preparation for the new Soil Health Grant:  forms and file structure compiled onto the 
shared drive for all to use 

  Cover Crops:

 We have 16 continuing cover crop / no-till contracts from last year.
 To date – 12 potential interests in cover crops for 2025, many from last year
 Preliminary planning of cover crops with interested growers 

Outreach & Client Contacts:

 Prepping a mailing to targeted high nitrate townships



 May/June newsletter – plan to work on a cover crop article

  Coffee ‘n Conservation:

 Next month 4/24 it will be hosted by the Bear Valley Watershed District near Bellechester 
around the topic ‘erosion’

o 15 total to-date producers / landowners in attendance 
o Great conversation around a variety of conservation topics: erosion, nutrient 

management, cover crops, tillage, weed control
o Flyer prep., email – call – text producers for attendance

 Plan to skip the month of May due to the busy planting season

Training:

 4/17 Advance Nutrient Management Training in Marshall, 40 people present, great 
training covering more of the details of nutrient management including state rules and 
permits, studies and NRCS policies and procedures



 

 

 

 

 

 

PRESIDENT 

CHARLES RAU 

Rice, MN 

(320) 493-9503 

 
 

VICE PRESIDENT & 

SE AREA 7 DIRECTOR 

RANDY SMITH 

Adams, MN 

(507) 438-4570 

 
 

SECRETARY/TREASURER & 

NE AREA 3 DIRECTOR 

JAKE JANSKI 

Milaca, MN 

(320) 241-0728 

 
 

NW AREA 1 DIRECTOR 

RANDY SCHELLACK 

Glyndon, MN 

(701) 238-8121 

 
 

WC AREA 2 DIRECTOR 

TOM GREGORY 

Kimball, MN 

320-398-7312 

 
 

METRO AREA 4 DIRECTOR 

JOHN RHEINBERGER 

West St. Paul, MN 

(651) 439-4199 

 
 

SW AREA 5 DIRECTOR 

CLARK LINGBEEK  

Comfrey, MN  

(507) 920-9884 

 
 

SE AREA 7 DIRECTOR 

BOB NIELSEN 

Green Isle, MN 

(763) 244-5061 

 
 

NC AREA 8 DIRECTOR 

KEN LAPORTE 

Pillager, MN 

(218) 746-3927 

 
 

 

STAFF 

Executive Director 

LEANN BUCK 

leann.buck@maswcd.org 
 

Assistant Director 

SHEILA VANNEY 

sheila.vanney@maswcd.org 
 

Conference & Events Manager 

MICHELE ASMUSSEN 

michele.asmussen@maswcd.org 
 

Accounting Manager 

STEFANIE MARTINEZ 

stefanie.martinez@maswcd.org 

MASWCD 
Minnesota Association of Soil and Water Conservation Districts 

100 Empire Drive, St. Paul, MN 55103    651-690-9028    www.maswcd.org 

Date:  April 3, 2025 

To:  Minnesota Soil and Water Conservation Districts 

From:  Chuck Rau, MASWCD President 

Subject: MASWCD Call for Resolutions – 2025 Resolution Process  

 

Attached please find the following materials related to the 2025 MASWCD 

Resolutions Process: 

▪ resolutions process guidelines, including sample resolution format and list of 

sunsetting resolutions. 

 

Please note: 

 The “therefore, be it resolved” in the resolution should state an action or a 

policy position that MASWCD should take as it relates to the mission and 

work of SWCDs.  This will help with the post-convention resolution 

prioritization process. 

 All resolutions will need to include information on the potential workload 

impacts for MASWCD (budget, staffing, committee, services, etc.) 

o The intent is to encourage a comprehensive discussion on policy and 

program issues. The National Association of Conservation Districts 

also requests similar language for their resolutions.   

 Following local district board approval, member district resolutions should 

be submitted to their designated June MASWCD area meeting for 

consideration and approval. Visit MASWCD Meetings & Events to view area 

meeting information (as it becomes available).         

 July 21 is the deadline for Area resolutions to be received by the 

MASWCD office. 

 

The MASWCD Policy Handbook is a compilation of standing MASWCD resolutions 

and is posted to the MASWCD web site ~  www.maswcd.org ~ on the Resolutions 

Process page.   

 

If you have any questions, please do not hesitate to call me at (320) 493-9503, LeAnn 

Buck at (651) 690-9028 or your MASWCD Area Director.  Thank you. 

 

Enclosures. 



MASWCD Resolutions Process Guidelines 
 

page 1 of 2 

MINNESOTA ASSOCIATION OF SOIL & 
WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICTS (MASWCD) 

 
RESOLUTIONS PROCESS GUIDELINES 

 

 
The resolutions process is the means by which local SWCD Supervisors can identify soil and water conservation 
needs and issues and bring them before the membership of the Association for review and action at the 
MASWCD Annual Convention.  The resolution process provides a forum for education and information to SWCD 
board members on statewide conservation issues.  The resolutions also provide guidance and direction to the 
Board of Directors of the MASWCD and NACD. 
 

In order to provide for an orderly process, the following steps shall be used. 
 

1. Resolutions are to be developed and passed first by a local district, and then must be submitted to and 
approved by the MASWCD Area Association of which that district is a member. (Policy adopted by 
MASWCD Board of Directors September 16, 2011). An SWCD must be an MASWCD member in good standing 
in order to be eligible to submit a resolution.  It is important for a supervisor from the authoring SWCD to 
be in attendance at the Area meeting when the resolution is presented to explain the resolution and 
answer questions. 

 

2. All resolutions must be typed and in proper format – including clear identification of the originating district, 
contact person, and Area.  Background information explaining the intent of the resolution can be submitted 
with the resolution and should be limited to one page. 
▪ In addition, each resolution must include information on the potential fiscal impact for MASWCD 

(budget, staffing, committee, etc.).  (Policy adopted by MASWCD Board of Directors Feb. 17, 2010.) 
 

3. In the year following the defeat of a resolution by member vote, no SWCD may submit an essentially 
identical resolution to the one defeated.  (Policy adopted by MASWCD Board of Directors Aug. 26, 2008.) 

 

4. The timeline for the resolution process is as follows: 
▪ June – District Resolutions submitted to Area Association meetings for consideration and approval  
▪ July 21 - Deadline for approved Area resolutions to be submitted to the MASWCD office. 
▪ Mid to End of August - MASWCD Board reviews packet. 
▪ September 15 - Packets sent to SWCDs for pre-convention balloting. 
▪ November 1 - Deadline for district pre-convention ballots to be submitted the MASWCD office. 

 

5. In order to develop a uniform resolution packet, MASWCD will: 

• Only accept those resolutions submitted by July 21. 

• Only accept resolutions that are in proper format. 

• Eliminate those which are not related to MASWCD responsibilities. 

• Eliminate those which are the same as standing MASWCD resolutions. 

• Consolidate similar resolutions. 

• Edit and condense resolutions. 
 

6. In August the packet will go before the MASWCD Board of Directors for approval. 
 

7. Resolutions will be duplicated and mailed to all SWCDs by September 15.  This will give each SWCD 
adequate time to review all resolutions and to vote their position on each prior to the annual convention, 
using the pre-convention resolution ballot process. 

MASWCD will seek the consent of the authoring district. } 



MASWCD Resolutions Process Guidelines 
 

page 2 of 2 

8. The results of the pre-convention resolution ballot process will be distributed during the first general 
session of the annual convention.  All resolutions needing further discussion, amendment, and/or 
action will also be presented.  No action is taken at the first general session. 

 
9. Resolutions needing further action will be brought before the membership for action during the second 

general session of the annual convention.  This will provide additional time for convention delegates to 
study each proposed resolution. 

 
REMINDER: Each member district submitting a resolution which is brought up for further action must 
continue their responsibility for the resolution and have a supervisor available to speak for it when it is 
brought before the membership. 
 
10. The pre-convention resolution ballot process is a means to limit debate on the floor of the convention 

on resolutions for which the membership has a strong agreement for or against.  Toward that end, the 
following will apply: 

• If 66 percent of all supervisors whose ballots are received vote to APPROVE a resolution, the 
resolution will be deemed as moved and seconded for adoption at the annual meeting. 

• If 66 percent of all supervisors whose ballots are received vote to DISAPPROVE a resolution, it will 
automatically be rejected, with no further action at the annual meeting. 

• If 34% of all supervisors whose ballots are received vote to BRING THE RESOLUTION TO THE 
CONVENTION FLOOR FOR FURTHER DISCUSSION OR AMENDMENT, it will be brought to the 
MASWCD annual meeting for further action.  This provision overrides the first two, in the event that 
this condition and one of the above conditions are both met. 

(Policy adopted by MASWCD Board of Directors March 24, 2009.) 
 
11. If an EMERGENCY occurs and an SWCD feels an EMERGENCY RESOLUTION is necessary, the SWCD 

should contact the MASWCD Area Director and submit to him/her the emergency resolution.  It is then 
the responsibility of the Area Director to carry forward the resolution to the MASWCD Board for action. 

 
12. The following are criteria for an EMERGENCY RESOLUTION: 

▪ The issue or event is something that has taken place between the time resolutions are due in the 
MASWCD office and when they are acted upon at the convention. 

▪ The resolution deals with a natural disaster. 
▪ The issue or event must be acted upon before the beginning of the next resolution process. 

 Final decisions regarding EMERGENCY RESOLUTIONS will be made by the MASWCD Board of Directors. 
 
13. No resolutions will be accepted from the floor of the convention. 
 
14. Area Directors should be consulted for information on deadlines for resolutions to be submitted at the 

Area level.  All resolutions approved at the Area level must be received in the MASWCD office no later 
than July 21. 

 
15. It is the policy of MASWCD to sunset resolutions after four years from adoption.  Resolutions over two 

biennia (four years) may no longer be applicable or suitable for MASWCD to pursue, and new or revised 
legislative actions may be sought through the resolutions process annually.  (Policy adopted by 
MASWCD Board of Directors March 27, 2007) 

 

Minnesota Association of Soil and Water Conservation Districts 
100 Empire Drive, Suite 205, St. Paul MN 55103     Phone (651) 690-9028     www.maswcd.org 



MASWCD Resolution Guidelines 

 

 

RESOLUTION TITLE 
 
 

WHEREAS, [insert statement of fact, finding or argument]; and 
 
WHEREAS, [insert statement of fact finding or argument]; and 
 
WHEREAS, [insert statement of fact, finding or argument]. 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that MASWCD [insert the action that should be taken and by 
whom, if not solely MASWCD]. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, [if applicable - insert additional action that should be taken and by 
whom]. 
 
WORKLOAD IMPACT STATEMENT.  [insert ‘high’, ‘medium’ or ‘low’ for MASWCD workload 
estimates associated with resolution]  

 
Considerations for workload levels include time and funds spent associated with:  

• Policy Development & Expertise  

• District Member Program Development and Support 

• External Alliances (Political: State or Federal) 

• External Alliances (Agency/Partner Network) 

• Communication & Outreach Strategies  

• District Member Training    

• Association Operational Costs (e.g. staff and/or board time, overhead, travel, committee 
expenses, services etc.) 

 
Submitted by: [name of SWCD] Area Association: [e.g. NW Area 1] 
 Date adopted:   
 
Reviewed by MASWCD Board of Directors MASWCD Annual Convention 
Date: Date: 
 Action: 
 
For further information, contact: 
[insert name of Supervisor or SWCD manager, SWCD name, phone number, email address] 
 
Background: 
[optional, but helps explain intent behind resolution] 
 
  



MASWCD Resolution Guidelines 

 

 

 

RESOLUTIONS WHICH WILL SUNSET IN DECEMBER 2025 
 
The following resolutions became standing policy for MASWCD after being approved by the membership 
in December 2021.  The resolutions will sunset in December 2025.  For more information, including the 
full text of the resolutions and action taken to date, please visit the “Resolutions Process” page on the 
MASWCD web site (www.maswcd.org). 
 

2021 Resolution Number and Title 

1 
Minnesota Wetland Conservation 
Agency Coordination 

4 Job Approval Authority Coordination 

5 
Public Water Inventory Map Re-
Addition Public Hearings 

6 
Outdoor Heritage Funds for Private 
Shoreline Projects 

7 BWSR Continued Forestry Support 

8 
Private Forest Management MOU and 
BWSR Forest Conservation Program 

9 
Local-State-Federal Partnership on 
Forestry in Minnesota 

11 
Cost Sharing for Removal of Tile 
Intakes 

12 Climate-Smart Agriculture 

13 Right of Way Vegetative Management 

14 
Increased Payment Rate for Easement 
Delivery 

 
 
 
 





4/23/2025






